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[SS10N & OBJECTIVES

Improve access to affordable housing

CHC is a provider of affordable housing for people on low and
moderate incomes, particularly those who are not eligible for
public housing.

CHC aims to increase the supply of affordable rental housing for
those households experiencing housing stress, and to improve
access to affordable home ownership.

Create appropriate housing

CHC is committed to delivering appropriate housing, and
ensures that each of its developments provide housing choice
and diversity in order to meet the evolving needs of the
community.

The company is also mindful of environmental sustainability,
meeting special housing requirements, and contributing to the
development of socially cohesive communities.

?
C H C S Improve service delivery
m i SS i O n i S CHC will promote the engagement of customers and
stakeholders by:
tO rOV i d e = Improving the quality of housing provided to tenants through
p strategic asset management;

= Establishing participatory processes; and

affo rd a b I e = Developing community partnerships with other community
organisations to assist in supporting tenants and improving

social capital.

hOU SI n g tO Operate in an efficient manner with appropriate

corporate governance

p e O p I e O n CHC ensures its policies and practices contribute to the long-

term viability of CHC as an independent not-for-profit company.

I d The company continues to preserve its status as a public
OW a n benevolent institution, and invests the proceeds from efficient

housing operations towards the retention and expansion of

m O d e rate affordable housing for future generations.
|nC0meS_ Values

CHC values are held by its staff members and are expected
in its suppliers.

The values that guide CHC include:

» Ethical practice
* Creativity

* Respect

= Leadership

= Accountability
= Sustainability




CHATRMAN + CEO°S REPORT

THE DIFFERENCE WE'RE MAKING

The theme for CHC’s 2014 Annual Report is The Difference
We’re Making. This reflects our journey from a community
housing provider to one of Australia’s leading affordable
housing companies. As always, our mission to provide quality
affordable housing for people on low to moderate incomes
remains at the core of our business — which has again been
successfully achieved during the 2013/14 financial year.

Since the introduction of the ACT Government’s Affordable
Housing Action Plan in 2007, CHC's journey has included a
number of initiatives that have made a tangible difference to
lives of many Canberrans.

From an affordable sales perspective, CHC has led the way in
creating opportunities for home buyers entering the property
market. This has included projects such as “The Edge”
development in Harrison — the first multi-unit development to
be constructed along Gungahlin’s Flemington Road corridor;
“Eclipse” at Bruce — a 223 unit development located within
close proximity to the CBD and Belconnen Town Centre
which delivered a significant number of affordable options
for purchasers; and “Symphony Park” — a project specifically
targeting first home buyers through a combination of rebates
and government incentives.

Our primary point of difference is clearly embedded
within our affordable rental initiatives. No other company
outside the ACT Government is delivering a subsidised
rental product to the scale and quality of CHC. The variety
of our product allows the company to cater to a diverse
demographic — with affordable rental options for singles,
couples and families. Further, our green initiatives ensure

that many of our dwellings are not only affordable to rent —
but are also affordable to live-in.

To complement CHC's affordable rental program, we have
leveraged the Commonwealth Government’s National
Rental Affordability Scheme and created an investment
model that has attracted property investors to the affordable
rental housing market. This has enabled additional rental
properties to be delivered across the ACT to the benefit of
CHC's target market.

The combination of all these initiatives is making a difference.

Financial Performance

Through careful planning and management of resources,
we delivered a respectable $5.1m surplus, thus providing
CHC with the opportunity of further expanding its services
and affordable initiatives. Notably, we provided a total of
$2.5m in rental rebates to eligible tenants.

The Company maintained a strong balance sheet with
modest gearing and ample liquidity throughout the 2013/14
financial year, equity increasing by $6.2m to a total of $108m.

Further details of the Company’s financial performance are
provided later in this report.

"JUR PRIMARY POINT OF DLFFERENCE
5 CLEARLY EMBEDDED WITHIN OUR
AFFORDABLE RENTAL INTTLATIVES.”
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New Opportunities

We continue to seize opportunity.

Over the next decade, the fastest growing demographic group
in Canberra will be people aged over 65, expanding to nearly
15 per cent of the population. The challenge moving forward
will be to ensure that suitable housing is available for this
demographic — and to deliver it at prices they can afford near
the services they need.

Recognising this emerging issue, CHC has taken the initial
steps in actively pursuing a role within the Retirement Living
Sector. In this regard, our proposed redevelopment project
located in the inner-north suburb of Downer has been
earmarked as the ideal platform to enter this market.

With research indicating that downsizers generally want to
remain connected to the community and the services with
which they are familiar, the Downer project will provide the
opportunity for residents in the local area and surrounding
suburbs to age in-place.

We are of the firm belief that affordability within the
Retirement Living Sector will be an ongoing concern for
both government and the wider community. CHC'’s entry
into this sector will provide options for those who are notin a
financial position to find appropriate accommodation in their
retirement years.

Design work and planning are underway for our first
retirement community with a brief to ensure that we create
an environment that encourages independence, but also
encompasses social inclusion, security, as well affordable
options for purchase and rent.

Thank You

As we enter 2015 with a determination to succeed, and a
strong commitment to provide exceptional service and
affordable product, we are confident of the future for CHC
and of our resolve to manage both the opportunities and the
challenges ahead.

CHC'’s Board of Directors, management team and employees
are committed to achieving the company’s ambitions as
aleader in the affordable housing sector, and will set the
direction for sustainable growth.

Finally, we wish to thank all those that contribute to the
company - your advice, support and hard work continue to
make a difference.
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PROGRAMS 23% PORTFOLIO PROGRAMS 49% PORTFOLIO
AFFORDABLE 1 BEDROOM 31 AFFORDABLE 1BEDROOM 10
REBATED RENT 2 BEDROOM 23 REBATED RENT 2 BEDROOM o3
PROVIDERS 3 BEDROOM 26 LAND RENT 3 BEDROOM 112
NRAS 4 BEDROOM 4 NRAS 4 BEDROOM 1
TOTAL 5BEDROOM 3 TOTAL 5 BEDROOM 0

TOTAL 87 TOTAL 216

PROGRAMS 3% PORTFOLIO PROGRAMS 9% PORTFOLIO
AFFORDABLE 1BEDROOM 0 AFFORDABLE 1BEDROOM 2
REBATED RENT 2 BEDROOM 0 REBATED RENT 2 BEDROOM 29
MANAGED PROP. 3BEDROOM 3 PROVIDERS 3BEDROOM 7

4 BEDROOM 0 4 BEDROOM 1
5BEDROOM 0 5BEDROOM 0
TOTAL 3 TOTAL 39

PROGRAMS 8% PORTFOLIO PROGRAMS 2% PORTFOLIO
AFFORDABLE 15 1BEDROOM 0 AFFORDABLE 1BEDROOM 0
REBATED RENT 13 2 BEDROOM 3 REBATED RENT 2 BEDROOM
PROVIDERS 8 3 BEDROOM 29 PROVIDERS 3 BEDROOM 4

4 BEDROOM 1 4 BEDROOM 0
5BEDROOM 0 5BEDROOM 0
TOTAL 33 TOTAL 8

PROGRAMS 5% PORTFOLIO PROGRAMS 1% PORTFOLIO
SPECIALPURPOSE  § 1 BEDROOM 3 AFFORDABLE 1 BEDROOM 0
NRAS 16 2 BEDROOM 3 REBATED RENT 2 BEDROOM 1
TOTAL 21 3 BEDROOM 0 TOTAL 3 BEDROOM 5

4BEDROOM 0 4BEDROOM 1
5 BEDROOM 3 5BEDROOM 0
TOTAL 9 TOTAL 7
HOUSING PORTFOLIO 1 BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 3 BEDROOM
46 156 186
4 BEDROOM 5 BEDROOM
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A BOARD WITH ADIFHERINCE

CHC is fortunate to have a strong and competent Board with
each member elected as a result of a commitment to, and an
understanding of, CHC’s mission and objectives.

The appointment of individual Directors is within
the following expertise profiles as outlined in CHC’s
Constitution:

* Housing development and procurement;
* Asset management;

 Social housing management;
 Community development;

» Social policy development;

e Law;

= Accounting; and

» Corporate finance.

The Chair, Deputy Chair and one other Director are
appointed by the ACT Government.

The Chief Executive Officer is an ex-officio member of the
Board and attends all CHC Committees.

During the year, Ms Parkes resigned from the Board after
providing over six years of valued service. Ms Rebecca
Vassarotti filled the vacancy in November 2013, bringing
her wealth of experience as a senior executive in the non-
government sector to the company.

DUR BOARD'S FOCUS REMATNS
ON STRATEGY, GOVERNANCE
AND RISK MANAGEMENT.

6 10




Colin Alexander
Chair
OAM, FCPA, BA (Acc)

Extensive corporate finance and accounting expertise and over 20 years’ experience
in the land development and construction industry. CEO of CIC Australia Ltd since its

founding in 1986, Chairman of the Canberra MBA Fidelity Fund, Board member of the
ACT Property Council, Council member of the Canberra Business Council and Board
member of the MBA Skills Centre Building Fund. Board member since October 2009.

Paul Green

Deputy Chair

Member (Audit Committee)
MG, BA, LLB (Hons)

Provides legal advice to property developers and major builders nationally and
internationally on project delivery including structure, tax, acquisition, construction
and financing. Previously managing partner of Meyer Vandenberg Lawyers following
an initial 21 year career as an officer in the Australian Regular Army. Has previously
lectured in Building and Construction Law at the University of Canberra.

Board member of the Lidia Perin Foundation. Board member since October 2011.

Richard Bear

Director

Member (Audit Committee)

Crace Developments Pty Ltd (CHC nominee)
BCom

Executive responsibility for financial management, information technology and
human resource management. Prior Assistant Secretary within the Department of
Veterans Affairs, an Assistant General Manager of the Child Support Agency, and the
General Manager, Development and Construction for Defence Housing Australia.
Board member since May 2008.

Rebecca Vassarotti
Director

Chair (Community Committee)
BA/MEnvLaw

Long term executive experience in the non-government sector. Currently Deputy
CEO of Australian Council of Social Service. Previous appointments include
Executive Director of YWCA of Canberra, and CEO of Consumers Health Forum

of Australia. Prior to this was a senior officer in the ACT Government. Previous
appointments have included the National Implementation Panel to Reduce Violence
Against Women and Children, the ACT Portable Long Service Leave Board and
the Government Delegation to the 2013 United Nations Commission for the Status of
Women. Board member since November 2013.

PG 11



Cathi Moore

Director

Chair (Audit Committee)

Member (Community Committee)
BA (Soc Sci)

Extensive experience in public administration, both in the social policy and
program management areas and has a wide range of experience in the community
sector. 10 years at the Senior Executive Level managing a range of commercial and
operational areas and reviewing the efficiency and effectiveness of government
services in the former Commonwealth Department of Administrative Services (DAS).
Board member since October 2007.

Ken Horsham
Director
Grad Dip (Architecture)

Housing, planning and development consultant with urban development and management
expertise. Previously a housing and community services advisor with the Australian
Government, ACT Commissioner for Housing and General Manager ACT Housing
and Community Services Bureau. Chair of Northside Community Service. Former
CHC Chair and Executive Director. Board member since January 1998.

Kim Werner

Director

Member (Community Committee)
BA/LLB / Grad Dip (Population Health)

Executive experience in the non-government sector and former accredited
Mediator and Facilitator. Previous appointments include Manager, Women'’s Centre
for Health Matter Inc, Deputy Director, Toora Women Inc, and Governance and
Planning Manager, Secretariat of National Aboriginal and Islander Child Care Inc.
Currently holds the position of Deputy Chair, Private Mental Health Consumer
Carer Network (Australia). Board member since October 2009.

Tania Parkes — Resigned September 2013
Director (former)

Member (Community Committee — former)

PhD (Literature)

Principal of Tania Parkes Consulting. Social planner with 15 years’ experience in consultation, research, evaluation
and in facilitating residential and commercial property developments for government, non-government and private 2l
sectors. Previously a senior government official for over 13 years working in social policy portfolios. Board member

since June 2007.
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Audit Committee

The Board has an established Audit Committee
to oversee:

* Management of organisational risk;

= Maintaining an effective control environment that
includes systems for internal monitoring and financial
and fraud control;

< Maintaining reliable financial reporting;

e Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
guidelines; and

« Maintaining effective and efficient audit functions.

The Audit Committee comprises four members with
three being Directors and one external appointee with
finance/audit qualifications. The Committee meets
regularly with the Executive team, providing a forum
for communication between the Board, accountants
and external auditors. It enhances the credibility and
objectivity of financial reports with key stakeholders
and the general public.

Community Committee

CHC’s Community Committee has been established

to ensure that the company continues to provide
exceptional service to its tenants. The Committee
undertakes regular review of CHC'’s tenancy policies
and procedures, and has established a Tenant Advisory
Group to facilitate effective two-way communication
between CHC and its tenants.

CHC Executive Team

The Executive Team of CHC provides strategic
leadership to CHC under the governance of the Board,
and reporting to the Chief Executive Officer. These
members have been selected as a result of their
qualifications and commercial experience.

EXECUTIVE

Members of the Executive Team

Mr Craig Brennan

Development, Assets

Ms Kim Sinclair,

Mr Rohan Haslam

Finance, IT

CFO, B Art, B Com, CA

Chief Executive Officer, BComm, MBA

Deputy CEO, Dip. Company Directors, GAICD
Company Secretary, Corporate, Risk Management,
Quality Assurance, Human Resources, Tenancy,
Records Management, NRAS
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Risk Management Framework

The Board of CHC is a strong advocate of good corporate
governance, transparency and accountability. This is
essential for the long term performance and sustainability
of our company, and to protect and enhance the interests of
our members and other stakeholders.

Our governance framework plays an integral role in
supporting our business and helping us deliver on our
strategy. It provides the structure through which our
strategy and business objectives are set, our performance
is monitored, and the risks we face are managed. It provides
a clear framework for decision making and accountability
across our business activities, and guidance on the
standards of behaviour we expect of our people.

We review our governance arrangements regularly —
keeping informed and adopting where necessary,
new developments in the market place and regulation.

As such during the 2014 financial year, CHC reviewed, and
where necessary, modified and amended its corporate
governance documents to reflect the following.

* The release of the ASX Corporate Governance Principles
and Recommendations, Edition 3 (27 March 2014);

e Transitioning from ACT Affordable Housing registration
to registration as a Tier 1 Provider under the Community
Housing Providers (Adoption of National Law) Bill 2012;

e Registration as a charity with the Australian Charities and
Not for Profits Commisssion (ACNC) under the Charities
Act 2013 effective 1 July 2013; and

= Ongoing compliance as per the Australian Securities
Investment Commission (ASIC).

Key Corporate Governance Documents
= Constitution

= Corporate Governance Charter

* Risk Management Policy and Plan

e Fraud Control Policy and Plan

= Work Health and Safety Policy and Plan

ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management System
The company continues to highly value its ISO 9001:2008
accreditation of our management systems. In order to
achieve and maintain accreditation, CHC continues to
demonstrate that it:

e Maintains a set of procedures that covers all key business
processes;

= Monitors processes to ensure effectiveness;
» Keeps adequate records;

* Checks quality of outputs , with appropriate and
corrective actions where necessary;

= Regularly reviews quality system components for
effectiveness; and

« Facilitates continual improvements.
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OUR STAR
OUR STARF AREMAKING A DIFERENCE

CHC has a dedicated team. The contribution of every staff
member — from the administration support staff through to its
front line teams in tenancy and asset management — are integral
to ensuring that the company meets its mission and strategic
objectives.

The company continues to value its workforce as its greatest
asset with ongoing commitment to developing and implementing
workforce plans for specific reform and demand areas.

Our priorities remain:

« Finding the right people

» Developing our people

» Supporting and valuing our people

During the 2014 financial year, CHC
implemented the following key initiatives:

< Review and update of all human resource processes
and documents;

« Regular internal training sessions; and
* An employee wellness program
- supporting selected health club memberships.
CHC continues to develop and implement
workforce strategies to:

» Attract and retain staff across all business areas;

= Strengthen performance by keeping up with changing
technologies;

< Respond to and recognise evolving community expectations;

* Ensure employees know the importance of their work and how
it contributes to the achievement of organisational goals; and

» Ensure that employees are well-supported in a safe and
healthy workplace.



OUR TENANTS

MAKING A DIFFERENCE

We are making a difference to the lives of many Canberrans
who would otherwise struggle in the private rental market.

Consistent with our mission and objectives, CHC provides
rental housing on a rebated basis to eligible tenants. Since
the commencement of the Affordable Housing Action Plan
(2007), CHC has provided almost $14m in rental rebates
to its tenants. This is a significant achievement that directly
benefits the lives of our tenants.

The company’s tenancy composition consists of a number
of programs:

« Public Rebated Rent (Community Housing);
» Affordable Housing (74.9% of market rent); and
« National Rental Affordability Scheme (74.9% of market rent).

The Public Rebated Rent housing program is available only
to tenants who had tenure at the time the ACT Government
transferred stock to CHC.

The Affordable Housing program is capped at 74.9 per cent
of the market rent of a property.

The majority of CHC’s new dwellings receive subsidies
under the National Rental Affordability Scheme (NRAS).

This legislation was introduced in 2008 by the
Commonwealth Government to stimulate the supply of new
affordable rental dwellings by providing financial incentives
to successful applicants who develop approved dwellings to
be rented to eligible low and moderate income households at
rents below market rates. To support CHC's charitable status,
CHC has adopted a consistent rental policy of charging

74.9 per cent of the market rent under the NRAS scheme.

16 )0
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Connecting with our Tenants

CHC uses a number of different communication methods
to stay engaged with our tenants. We aim to create a
community and consider effective communication to be
at the heart of this process.

Newsletters

During the course of the 2013/14 financial year, CHC
produced a series of Newsletters that were distributed to
all CHC tenants. The information contained within these
newsletters aims to be both informative and entertaining,
and includes useful tips on energy saving strategies,
tenant referral programs, CHC'’s development activities,
and maintenance.

i LETTER
‘\‘ TEMANT rﬁy‘-‘fﬂ 2

Tenant Advisory Group

We understand that nothing replaces face-to-face
contact. To better appreciate our tenants, CHC

coordinates Tenant Advisory Group meetings throughout

the year that provides an effective platform for two-way
dialogue. Open to all CHC tenants, the meetings are

a valuable and unique way for us to hear what our key
stakeholders thinks of us — where we can improve — and
where we are exceeding expectations.

The information collected is varied — and assists
CHC with its tenancy services and planning for new
development projects.

(HC REGULARLY ENGAGES WTTR TS
RESIDENTS T0 UNDERSTAND HOW
SERVICES CAN BE TMPROVED.

Information Evening

Transitioning our tenants into home ownership is
something we aim to achieve. Over the years, CHC
has assisted a number of its tenants take this significant
step. We are proud of this achievement, and continue
to provide information and opportunities to our tenants
regarding our developments.

In October 2013, CHC held an Information Evening
where CHC's tenants were provided with an exclusive
preview of a CHC project prior to its market release.
A general overview of the project including pricing
was provided in addition to access to financial
representatives to discuss financing options.

In 2014/15, we will continue to connect with our tenants
with a Tenant Survey, Garden Competitions and Tenant
Newsletters.

-







TENANTS STORY

JOHN AND SUSAN ARE AYOUNG COUPLE WHO
HAVE JUSTHAD THELR SECOND CHILD.

Both work in the retail sector and because of their
combined income they are not eligible for public housing.
Before approaching CHC they were renting a 2 bedroom
townhouse in the private rental market which was causing
considerable financial stress and was not suitable for their
circumstances.

Following a referral from a friend, the couple made an
application with CHC for a new three bedroom home.

"0k LIVES HAVE CHANIGED iﬁ,#
(OMPLETELYSINCE MOVING INTD -~ 99
OUR CHC HOME. WE HAVE RODM
08 OUR GROWING FAMLL
INCLUDING A BACKTARD FOR JOHN
10 GROM HIS VEGETABLES
IE NOW PAY LESSRENT FOF
A BETTER HOME FOR s
IE CAN NOW EEP UP WITH T BLL
AND ONE DAY WE WOLLD LI
10 START SAVING MONEY OR QU
DA HOME SOMEDAY”
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BONNER + JACKA

CHC completed 20 three and four bedroom homes in the
Gungabhlin suburbs of Jacka and Bonner. The land was acquired
under the ACT Government’s Land Rent Scheme and added
important diversity to CHC’s portfolio.

Design Team

Builder — Blackett Homes

Designer — Blackett Homes

Project Manager - CHC

Key Outcomes

* 20 new three and four bedroom affordable homes
= Energy Efficiency Ratings of 7-8 Stars
* NRAS approved
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LCLIPSE
BUCE

Representing one of the single largest residential projects to
be undertaken by a not for profit in Australia, CHC completed
construction of the Eclipse development — a multi-unit project
that yielded 223 studio, one, two and three bedroom units
and townhouses. In addition to a substantial number of
affordable properties for sale, CHC made available NRAS
incentives to purchasers to increase the supply of affordable
rental properties.

Design Team

Architect — AMC Design and Management
Builder — Milin Builders

Hydraulic Engineer - Sellick Consultants
Structural Engineer - Sellick Consultants

Quantity Surveyor — Aaron Still Consulting

Project Manager — XAct

Key Outcomes

= In excess of 30% of the dwellings for sale and rent offered
at an affordable price point

* Energy Efficiency across the project — high percentage
of north-facing dwellings

* New community facilities for use by residents including
BBQ and meeting space

* NRAS approved

» Retention of 14 units by CHC

 Private sector investment in affordable housing

= Office space for CHC’s new corporate headquarters



THE TERRACE

HARRTSON

The Terraces, which represent the first in a three-stage
development located in Harrison, delivered 27 three bedroom
terraces and 5 one bedroom units. Stages two and three of the
development will be targeted at Canberra’s first home buyer
market.

Design Team

Architect — Kasparek Architects

Builder — PBS Building

Hydraulic Engineer — Sellick Consultants

Structural Engineer — Sellick Consultants

Quantity Surveyor — Donald Cant Watts Corke

Project Manager - CHC

Key Outcomes

= Delivery of new affordable housing in a high-growth corridor
* NRAS approved










APPRENTICE HOUS
100

During the reporting period, CHC completed Apprentice
House, a partnership between CHC and Apprentice House
Association Inc. The property is designed to be shared

by 1st and 2nd year trade apprentices experiencing
financial hardship and/or difficulty in finding affordable
accommodation in Canberra.

Located in the Canberra suburb of Lyons, the property has
five bedrooms, each with its own living area and common
shared facilities space. Apprentice House Association Inc has
been engaged to provide support to each apprentice living at
the house through their ‘Live, Learn, and Earn’ program.

Apprentices will have the opportunity to gain or strengthen
their life skills when living in the home, helping them to
manage all aspects of living independently in the wider
community. Each apprentice will be responsible for the
cleaning of their own living area, maintaining the common
living areas including the garden, and cooking the evening
meal on a rostered basis.

An important part of living in the home is the supported
environment established by all residents and the ability to
share and support each other given they will all be working
as members of the building industry.

Design Team
Builder — Renaissance Homes
Architect — Kasparek Architects

Project Manager - CHC

Key Outcomes

» New affordable housing in a well-located inner south suburb

* Multiple tenancy options under a single roof

« Targeting young apprentices working within the
construction industry




DOWNER
A COMMONTTY WITH ADIFHERENCE

THEMASTERPLAN FOR CHC'S MOST ANTICIPATED PROTECT
WAS COMPLETED DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD.

Following close consultation with the Downer community and
ACT Government, CHC has created a masterplan that proposes
the redevelopment of the former Downer school to deliver
approximately 300 dwellings (including Independent Living
accommodation), a childcare centre and limited commercial
floor space.

The Masterplan includes the following

features:

- An integrated and community focused mixed-use development;

- Approximately 300 dwellings which will offer genuine housing
choice including affordable housing, downsizers/retirement
living and associated community facilities, townhouses and a
range of apartment units to suit investors and owner occupiers;

- Retirement living accommodation that will be 100% adaptable;

- Limited commercial tenancies that may specifically service the
retirement community; and

- An efficient and legible internal road arrangement.

THEDOWNER PROJECT REPRESENTS CHC'S HRST
FORAYINTO THERETTREMENTLTVING SECTOR

CHC awaits the outcome of the Territory Plan variation
—with construction of the first stage anticipated to commence
in early 2016.
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OUR ASSETS

]
CHC continues to implement a strategic and innovative This financial year the Company added 40 new
approach to asset management that: affordable rental properties to its portfolio. These homes
have been designed to maximise energy efficiencies
= Provides effective asset services including to reduce ongoing utility costs for the tenant. Initiatives
programmed and cyclical maintenance; such as double glazing, energy efficient appliances
* Reviews housing quality, condition and value; and and orientation of the home have delivered 7 to 8 star
« Identifies housing assets for long term retention, NABERS rated dwellings.

renovation, redevelopment or replacement.

Renewal program

CHC continued its refurbishment program of its transferred assets with another 19 properties completed.
This included the following works:

15 15 15 14 7 8 5 1

HOT WATER KITCHEN FLOOR INTERNAL EXTERNAL ELECTRIC GAS BATHROOM
SYSTEM REPLACEMENT COVERING REPAINT REPAINT HEATING HEATING REMODEL
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Community Housing Canberra Limited
(A company limited by guarantee)

che affordable housing

creating homes and communities

COMMUNITY HOUSING CANBERRA LIMITED
(A company limited by guaraniee)
ACN 081 354 752

Financial Statements

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

1|Page



d- FF AUDITOR-GENERAL AN OFFICER IR
V7 ACT AU it O iIce OF THE ACT LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY

A14/35

Mr Col Alexander
Chair

Community Housing Canberra Limited
PO Box 6239
O'CONMOR ACT 2602

Dear Mr Alexander

AUDIT REPORT — COMMUNITY HOUSING CANBERRA LIMITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

The Audit Office has completed the audit of the financial statements of Community
Housing Canberra Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014.

| have attached the audited financial statements and unqualified audit report.

Yours sincerely

Dr Maxlne Co
Auditor-General
Q' Octnher 2014

c.cC. Mr Craig Brennan, Chief Executive Officer
Mr Rohan Haslam, Chief Finance Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT
COMMUNITY HOUSING CANBERRA LIMITED

To the Members of Community Housing Canberra Limited

Report on the financial statements

The financial statements of Community Housing Canberra Limited (the Company) for the
year ended 30 June 2014 have been audited. The financial statements comprise the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes and directors’
declaration.

Responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including
Australian Accounting Interpretations) — Reduced Disclosure Requirements, Corporations
Act 2001 and Corporations Regulations 2001. This includes responsibility for maintaining
adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and
detect fraud and error, and the accounting policies and estimates used in the preparation
of the financial statements.

The auditor’s responsibility

Under the Corporations Act 2001, | am responsible for expressing an independent audit
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

| formed the audit opinion following the use of audit procedures to obtain evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. As these procedures are
influenced by the use of professional judgement, selective testing of evidence supporting
the amounts and other disclosures in the financial statements, inherent limitations of
internal control and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence, an
audit cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.

Although the effectiveness of internal controls is considered when determining the
nature and extent of audit procedures, the audit was not designed to provide assurance
on internal controls.
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The audit is not designed to provide assurance on the prudence of decisions made by
the Company.

Electronic presentation of the audited financial statements

Those viewing an electronic presentation of the financial statements should note that the
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of information presented electronically
and does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been
hyperlinked to or from the financial statements. If users of the financial statements are
concerned with the inherent risks arising from the electronic presentation of information,
they are advised to refer to the printed copy of the audited financial statements to
confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented information.

Independence

Applicable  independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
pronouncements were followed in conducting the audit.

Audit opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements of the Company are in accordance with the
Corporation Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 2014
and its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with the Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian
Accounting Interpretations) - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and
Corporations Regulations 2001.

This audit opinion should be read in conjunction with the other information disclosed in
this report.

o

Dr Maxine Coope
Auditor-General

Q_I/_’)Octoher 2014
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Community Housing Ganberra Limited
(A company limited by quarantee)

Directors’ report for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

The Directors present this report to the members of Community Housing Canberra Limited ("the Company”) for the year ended
30 June 2014 and the auditor's report thereon.

Directors
The Directors of the Company at any lime during the year and o the dale of this report are:
Directors’ Meatings Audit
Date Date A B A B
appainted coased
Mr Calin Alexander (Chai) 30 Ot 09 8 g
Mr Paul Green (Depuly Chair)** 30 0t 11 8 g i 5
Ms Calhl Moare (Deputy Chair)** 30 Oct 07 7 g 5 5
M Fichard Baar 27 May 08 [ g i 5
Mr Ken Horsham 21 Jan 88° 7 8
Ioks Kim Wemer 30 Oct 08 ] g
s Riabecca Vassarotl 26 Mav 13 2 4
M Tania Parkes 27 Jun 07 24 Sep 13 1 2
A Number of meefings atended
B Number of maetings held during the time the director held office during year
* Sinca incarporation
** Ms Moore's appointment as Deputy Chair ceased on 25 November 2013 at which fime sha was re-appointed as a Direclar; Mr Graan was
appainted Deputy Chair an this date

Ms Kim Sinclair is the Company Secrelary (appointed 27 Seplember 2011), KPMG, Sydney, is the Company’s ASIC agent.
Details of directors’ qualifications, experiance and special responsibilities can be found on page 8 of this report,
Directors' Interests and Benefits

Since incorporation, ne Director of the Company has received or become entilled to receive any benefil {other than a benefit
included in the aggregale amount of remuneration received or due and receivable by Directors or other key management parsonne
Iransactions shown in the financial statements at note 23) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related Company
with a Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or with a Company in which hefshe has a substanlial financial
interest. The Company’s Directors are remunerated in conjunction with acting in their capacily as a director.

Enviranmeantal regulations

The Companys development and assel management activities are subject to environmental regulations under bath
Commonwealth and Territory regulations, The Company aims to achleve a high standard in environmental matters. The Directors
have nol received nofification nor are they aware of any breaches of environmental laws by the Company,

Short and Long Term Objectives and Strategies

The Company’s short and long tlerm objectives are to: improve access to affordable housing; create appropriate housing; improve
service delivery; and develop organisational capacity through efficient corporale governance.

The Company's stralegy for achieving these objectives includes: developing new ways to deliver affordable housing; improving
housing choice by the inclusion in development projects of adaptable or accessible housing for rent or sale to peaple with
disabilities; improving the quality of housing provided to tenants; and periodically reviewing operations to ensure compliance with
the requirements of a Charity and Public Benevolent Institution.

Principal activities

The Company's principal activities undertaken during the financial year to achieve its objectives and strategies include:
1. continuing lo provide rental rebates to Rebated Rent tenants in existing stock;
2. continuing to provide rental rebates o Affordable Rent lenants in exisling stock;

3. continuing to provide rental rebates to National Rental Affordability Scheme (NRAS) tenants in new stock with approved
NRAS allocations;
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Community Housing Canberra Limiled
(A company Emited by guaraniee)

Diractors’ Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 continued...
Principal activities continued...

4. continuing to refurbish and redevelop transferred stock to improve the standard of that stock;
5. increasing the supply of affordable housing properties available for sale through the capital works program;

B. increasing the supply of affordable housing properties available for rent by eligible applicants through the capital works
program;

7. continuing to participate in the ACT Govermment's Land Rent Scheme (LRS) through the construction of 20 new three
and four bedroom dwellings in the suburbs of Bonner and Jacka and exchanging on a further 15 land rent blocks in
Lawson to allow for fulure construction of three and four bedroom dwellings. The dwellings constructed in 2014 contribute
to the supply of affordable housing properties available for rent by eligible applicants under the NRAS lenancy model;

8. completing conslruction of the Eclipse development, which vielded 223 sludio, cne, two and three bedroom units and
town houses in the suburb of Bruce. In addition to a substanlial number of affordable properties for sale, the Company
made available NRAS incentives to purchasers to increase the supply of affordable rental properiies, The Company
refained an additional & residential properties in the development in 2014 (2013: 6) to rent to eligible tenants under the
NRAS tenancy model;

9. completing construction of the Terraces project at Harrison - this project, which is the first in a three stage development
onland owned by the Company, known as Symphany Park, has delivered 27 three bedroom terraces and 5 one bedroom
units and made available NRAS incentives to purchasers to increase the supply of affordable rental properiies;

10. finalising design and planning warks for slage 2 of the Symphony Park project al Harrison to enable construction to
commence in the first quarter of 2015, This stage of the project will deliver 82 one, two and three bedroom units targeting
first home buyers through the provision of rebates of $20,000 under the Commonweallh Government's Housing
Affordability Fund,

11. completing construction of a 5 bedroom group home in Lyons on a block owned by the Company and previously used
as arental property. The group home, known as Apprentice House, is available for rent lo construction and other industry
apprentices in the ACT and has a live-in caretaker provided by the Apprentice House Associafion;

12. purchasing 6 one and two bedroom unils at the Somel development in Lyons, which contribute to the supply of affordable
housing properties available for rent by eligible applicants under the NRAS tenancy model,

13. continuing to administer the roll out of the NRAS non-entity joint venlure (NEJV) product, which provides for NRAS
incentives to be allocated to properties not owned by the Company, thereby allowing these properties to be rented to
qualifying tenants at 80% of market rent; and

14. continuing to work in conjunction with the ACT Government to explore redevelopment oplions for the former school site
in the suburb of Downer, with the aim of delivering a variety of affordable housing options to Canberra's inner north.

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in the nature of the Company's aclivities during the year not
otherwise disclosed in this report or the financial statements.

Performance measures

The Company's primary performance measure reflects its mission to provide affordable housing - for bolh sale and rent — to
people on low to moderate incomes. During the 2014 financial year, a iotal rental subsidy of $2.5 million was provided. The
Company confinues to provide both a Rebated Rent madel (25% of household income plus Commonwealth Rental Assistance)
and an Affordable Rent model (74.9% of market rent). In respect of the latter, the Company continued to grow its affordable
praperty portiolio by accessing the ACT Government's Land Rent Scheme and the Commonwealih Government’s National Rental
Affordability Scheme, Rebales were provided during 2014 as follows:

Tenancy model 2014 2014

§ Tenantable areas
Rebated Rental Rebate 1,272,934 107
Affordable Rental Rebate 1,256,194 33
Total Rebate 2,529,128 438

Furthermare, the Company measures performance through the establishment and monitoring of targels across its operations,
including in relation to afiordable dwellings for rent and for sale and renewal of existing housing stock, and is committed to
long-term financial viability and the development of appropriate risk management and asset management processes. The
Company is also committed to ensuring compliance with national community housing and not-for-profit regulatory requirements.
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Cammunity Housing Canberra Limited
(A company imited by guarantee

Directors' Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 continuwed...
Dividends and members’ guarantee

The Company's constitution precludes Ihe distibution of surplus funds to its members. In accordance with the Company’s
constitution, each member is liable to contribule $100 in the event that the Company is wound up. The lotal amount members
would contribute is §1,600 (2013: $1,500).

Events subsequent to balance date

Since the reporting dale, other than the matter(s) discussed above, there has not arisen, in the interval between the end of the
financial year and the date of the report, any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature that in the opinion of the
Directors is likely to substantially affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or the Company's stale of
affairs in future financial years.

Future developments

The Company will continue to carry on the principal activities noted above, while also working towards identifying future
opportunities to increase the supply of affordable housing for rent and sale.

Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company has paid insurance premiums of $18,750 in respect of directors” and
officers’ liability and legal expenses insurance confracts for current and former directors and officers, including senior executives
of the Company.

The insurance premiums relate to:

»  cosls and expenses that may be incurred by the relevant officers in defending proceedings whether civil or criminal
brought against them in their capacity as officers of the Company and whatever the oulcome; and

=  other liabililies that may arise from their position, with the exception of conduct invalving willful breach of duty or improper
use of information or position to gain a personal advantage.

The Directors have not included details of the nature of the liabilifies covered or the amount of the premium paid in respect of the
directors' and officars’ liability and legal expenses insurance contracts; as such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the
confract, confidentiality clause 12.14.

Auditor's independence declaration

The Auditor's independence declaralion in accordance with 5.307C of the Corparations Act 2001 Is set out on page 7 and forms
part of the Directors' report for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Signed in accordance wilh a resolution of the Directors made pursuant to 5, 298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001 on behalf of the
Directors;

an Paul Green
Chair Deputy Chair

Canbarraz-' Oclober 2014
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration

To the Directors of Community Housing Canberra Limited

In relation to the audit of the financial statements of Community Housing Canberra
Limited for the year ended 30 June 2014, | declare that, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, there have been no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Yours sincerely

H.

Dr Maxine Cooper
Auditor-General
21 October 2014

Level 4, 11 Moore Street Canberra City ACT 2601 PO Box 275 Civic Square ACT 2608
T 02 6207 0833 F 026207 0826 E aclaudilorgeneral@act.govau W www.audit.act.gov.au



Community Housing Canbarra Limited
(A company Emited by guarantes)

Directors’ qualifications, experience and special responsibilities

Name Qualifications Experience Special responsibilities
Colin Alexander OAM, BA (Acc),  Exlensive corporate finance and accounting experiise and over 20 years' Chair
FCPA experience in the land developmenl and construction industry, CEQ of CIC
Australia Lid since its founding in 1985, Chalrman of the Canberra MBA
Fidedity Fund, Board member of the ACT Properly Council, Council member
of tha Canberra Business Councll and Board member of the MBA, Skills
Centre Bullding Fund, Board member since Oclober 2008,
Paul Green MG, BA, LLB Provides legal advice o property devedopers and major builders nationally Deputy Chair
{Hons) and intemnaticnally on project delivery Including siruciure, tax, acquisition,
consiuclion and financing. Previously managing pariner of Meyer Meamber (Audk
Vandenberg Lawyers following an Inilial 21 year career as an officer in the Commiltae)
Ausirallan  Regular Army. Has previously leclured in Building and
Construction Law at the University of Canberra, Board member of the Lidia
Parin Foundation. Board member since Oclober 2011,
Richard Bear BCom Execufive responsibility for financial management, information technology Direclor
and human resource management. Prior Assistanl Secrelary within the
Depariment of Velerans Affairs, an Assistant General Manager of the Child Mamber (Audit
Support Agency, and lhe General Manager, Development and Construction Commitiee)
for Defence Housing Australia. Board member since May 2008, Crace Developments Ply
Ltd {CHC nominee)
Ken Horsham Grad Dip Housing, planning and development consultant with urban development and Director
{Architecture) managemen! experfise. Previcusly a housing and communily senvices
advisor with he Australian Governmenl, ACT Commissioner for Housing
and General Manager ACT Housing and Community Services Buread,
Chair of Northside Community Service, Former CHC Chair and Execulive
Director. Board member since January 1998,
Cathi Meore BA (Soc Sci) Exlensive experience in public administration, bolh in the social policy and Director
program managemenl areas and has a wide range of experience in the :
community sector. 10 years al the Senior Execulive Level managing arange ~ Cnair (Audit Committee)
ol commercial and operalional areas and reviewing the efficiency and Member (Communily
effectivencess of govermment services in the former Commonwealth Commities)
Departmen of Administrative Services (DAS), Board member since
Oclober 2007
Rebecca BAMEvLaw Long lerm execulive experience in the non-government sector.  Currently Director
Vassarolti Depuly CEQ of Australlan Councll of Social Service. Previous appointiments Cha
include Executive Director of YWCA of Canberra, and CEO of Consumers i (Communily
Health Forum of Australia. Prior to this was a senior officer in the ACT Commiliee)
Governmenl.  Previous appointments have included the Mafional
Implementalion Panel to Reduce Violence Against Women and Children,
the ACT Porable Long Service Leave Board and the Government
Defegation lo the 2013 United Mations Commission for the Stalus of
Women. Board member since Movember 2043,
Kim Wemner BALLE Executive experience In the non-government seclor and former acorediled Director
Mediator and Faciitator. Previous appointments include Manager, Women's
Grad Dip Cenire for Health Matler Inc, Depuly Direclor, Toora Women Inc, and Mamber (Communkly
Lﬁ”‘aﬂ"” Govemance and Planning Manager, Secretarial of National Aboriginal and Commitice)
h) Istander Child Care Inc. Gurrently holds the position of Deputy Chair, Privala
Mental Health Consumer Carer Network (Australia), Board member since
October 2008,
Tanila Parkes PhD (Lierature)  Principal of Tania Parkes Consulling. Social planner with 15 years' Director (former)
. experience in consultalion, research, evaluation and in facilitaling
resigned 24 Sep 13 : . Member {Community
residential and commerclal properly developments for govemment, non Commilise - former)

government and privale seclors. Previously a senior government official for
over 13 years working In social policy portfolios. Board member since
June 2007,
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Cammunity Housing Canbera Limiled

(A carnpany Emited by guarantea)
Statement of comprehensive income Note 2014 03
For the year ended 30 June 2014 § $
INCOME
Rental revenue 5(a) 6,951,648 6,162,793
Development sales revenue 5 (b) 34,540,441 39,391,262
Grant funding 5ic) 140,224 2,865,979
Management fees 5 (d) 80,210 49,119
OHher revenle 5 (e 450,434 280
Total revenue A2 172057 48,469 453
Gains
Gain on disposal or transfer of property, plant and equipmenl 12723 211
TOTAL INCOME 42,184,780 48,471,584
EXPENSES
Aszel management expenses (2,433,115) (2,133,831)
Bad debts (121,935) (65,759)
Cost of developments sold 6 {a) (28,587 ,7049) (32,596 372)
Development expenses 6{b) (384,279) (962,221)
Adminisirative expenses (822,084) (569,824)
Depreciation and amorisaticn 6 (c) (1.409,340) (1,100,840}
Employee expenses 7 (1,647,089) (1,487, 748)
Loss on disposal, ransfer or impairment of property, plant and equipment and 6 (d) (136,646) (217,164)
intangible assets
Selling expanses (1,285,193) (1,235,682)
TOTAL EXPENSES (36,627,390) (40,378,541)
Finance incomea 41a) 1,679.427 305,900
Finance expenses & (b) (2,136,462 (2,255,738)
Net finance cost (457,055) (1,949 837)
NET SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD 5,100,335 6,143,206
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ar ljngs
m’:fnﬂﬁg::iﬁ :ﬁf:‘w"m il 21 1,303,149 4,075,418
Bk &l o s ol e no omee %0
Other comprehensive income for the period 1,167,751 4,761,748
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 6,268,086 10,804,854

The statement of comprehensive incoma i 1o be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,
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Community Housing Canberra Limited
(A company limiled by guaranize)

Statement of financial position Note 2014 2013
As al 30 June 2014 $ '
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 10 24,603,760 13,117,376
Trade and olher receivables 1" 558,868 281,798
Inventary 12 8,112,690 32.100.,940
Ofher assels 13 2,147,038 1,115,029
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 36,422,356 46,624,142
MON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital works in progress 14 - 494 B86
Inventary 12 4,861,056 4,710,456
Property, plant and equipment L 146,510,438 134,667,253
Invesiments in avallable-for-sale equity instruments 15 560,855 2,196,262
Intangible assets 16 19,165 192 527
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 151,951,514 142,261,184
TOTAL ASSETS 188,373,871 188 865,326
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17 1,177,030 2,466,248
Employes benafils 18 154,013 75421
Other inlerest-bearing debl 4 633,565 4,740,010
Other provisions 18 1,113,389 2,267,250
Other liabilities 20 160,525 160,560
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,238,523 9,709,909
MON- CURRENT LIABILITIES
ACT Governmenl loan 4 68,112,000 68,112,000
Employee benafits 18 7437 44,527
Other inlerest-bearing debt 4 8,712,793 8,983,757
TOTAL HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 76,832,130 77,140,284
TOTAL LIABILITIES 80,070,653 B6,850,193
MET ASSETS 108,203,218 102,033,133
EQUITY
Asset revaluation surplus bl 57,183,814 55,880,666
Available-for-sale financial assel surplus i 550,932 86,330
Retained earnings 50,568,472 45468 137
TOTAL EQUITY 108,303,218 102,035,133

The statement of financlal position is ta be read in conjunction with the accompanying notas.
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Community Housing Canberra Limited
(A company limited by guaranize)

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Eamnings

Asseat
Revaluation
Surplus

Available-far-
Asset Surplus

Total Equity

]

Opening balsnce st Juy 2012 WIS 52350860 | st
et surplus for the period 6,143,206 - - 6,143,206
Other comprehensive income

Revaluation of land and buildings - 4,075,418 - 4,075,418
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assels - - 686,330 686,330

Total comprehensive income for the period
Transfer of revaluation increment for assels disposed of
Closing balance at 30 June 2013

6,143,208
534,613
45,468,137

4075418
(594,613)
ik

10,904,954

102,035,133

Net surplus for the period

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of kznd and buikdings

Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assels

Asset

The statement af changes in equity is io be read in conjuncion with the accampanying noles.

M|Page



Community Housing Canberra Limited

A conparey Brallad by guecanied

Statement of cash flows Note 2014 2013
For the year ended 30 June 2014 $ $
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 5,880,680 6,408,320
Cash payments fo suppliers and employees (6,333,160) {5623,311)
Interest and dividends received 1,679,427 305,900
Inlerest paid (2,484,603 (3,882 543)
Acquisition of property (7,078,520 (5,886,110)
Proceeds from the sale of inventory and properies 34538478 40,456,832
Construction of inventory and new properties (11,389,840) (29,419,107
Grant funding 13,636 1,935,370
Goods and Services Tax collected from customers 3,143,204 3,633,953
Goods and Services Tax inpul tax credils (paid to) / received from the (1,168,839) 1,111,468

Australian Taxation Office

Goods and Services Tax paid to suppliers (1,969,383) (3,821,807
Net cash provided by operating activities 14,931,169 5,218,866
Cash flows from investing activities

Payments from investments in equity inslruments 1,500,010 -
Acquisition of plant and equipment (800,943 (132,483)
Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment 24,069 5,000
Net cash provided by | (used in) investing activities 723,136 (127 483)
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash from borrowed funds 837,500 36,160,715
Repayment of loans (5,005,422) (36,417,061)
Repayment of finance lease liability - (7,.281)
Met cash (used in) financing activities {4,167,922) (263,627)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,486,384 4,827 756
Cash and cash equivalents al ihe beginning of the year 13,117,376 8,289,621
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10 24,603,760 13,117,376

The statement of cash Bows is 1o be read in conjunclion with the accompanying nolas,
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Community Housing Canberra Liméied

(A comparry kmited by guaranize]
Notes to the financial statements
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Community Housing Canberra Limited
(A company kimited by guaraniae)

Notes to the financial statements confinued...

1

(a)

(b)

()

Corporate information

The financial statemenls of Community Housing Canberra Ltd (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2014 was
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the direclors on 21 Oclober 2014,

Summary of accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial stalemenis are general purpose financial stalements which have been prepared in accordance with
Ausltralian Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements (including Australian Interpretations) adopted by
the Ausiralian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), and lhe Corporations Acf 2001, The Company is a not-for-profit entity
for the purposes of preparing the financial statements,

Historical cost convention

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of historical costs except for the following:

. land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on bulldings and any
impairment losses; and

. available for sale financial assets (invesiments in equity instruments) are measured at fair value,

The methods used lo measure the fair value of these assels are discussed in note 3. The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concem basis.

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumplions that affect
the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
assumplions are based on historical experience and other various factors that are believed to be reasonable undear the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments. Actual results may differ from these estimales.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimales are revised and in any fulure periods affected.

Information about crifical judgments in applying accounting policies thal have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following noles:

. Mote 3 - Determinalion of fair values
. Mote 15 = Investments in equity instrumenis

The accounting pelicies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements,
unless otherwise stated.

Changes in accounting policles

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

AASE 13 clarifies the definition of fair value and provides relaled guidance and enhanced disclosures about fair value
measurements. It does not affect which tems are required to be fair-valued. The scope of AASB 13 is broad and it applies
for both financial and non-financial items for which other Australian Accounting Standards require or permit fair value
measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements except in cerlain circumstances,

AASB 13 applies prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and as a rasult the
Company has applied AASB 13 for the first time in the current year (see notes 3, 8 and 15), In accordance with the
transitional provisions of AASB 13, the Company has applied the new fair value measurement guidance prospectively and
has not provided any comparative information for new disclosures. Notwithstanding the above, the change had no
significant impact on the measurements of the Company's assets and liabilities.

Amendments to AASB 119 Employee Benefits

The 2011 amendments to AASB 119 made a number of changes to the accounting for employee benefits. Under the
amendmenls, employee benefils ‘expeclad to be setlled wholly' within twelve months after the end of the reporting period
are short-term benefils, and are therefore not discounted when calculating leave liabilities. Based on a review of past leave
laking trends and practices, the Company expects the annual leave liability at the reporting date to be used wholly within
twelve months of the end of reporting period, annual leave is not discounted when calculating the leave iability, There has
been no change to the preseniation of annual leave as a current liability in accordance with AASE 101 Presentation of
Financial Statemenis.
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Notes to the financial statements continued...
2. Summary of accounting policles continued...

(d)

(e)

(a)

(h)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the Company is legally entilled to the income and the amount can be quantified with
reasonable accuracy. Revenuas are recognised net of the amounts of goods and services tax (GST) payable to the
Australian Taxation Office (ATO),

Rental revenue comprises the revenue eamed from the provision of community and affordable housing to enlilies outside
the Company. Rental revenue is recognised when the fee in respect of services falls due, which is typically on a fortnightly
basis, in advance of the provision of housing.

Development sales revenue, from the sale of land and building arising from development activities, is recognised on the
date of setflement.

Grant funding from Government is recognised at fair value when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with attached conditions.

Reciprocal transfer is income thal arises in the ordinary course of an enfity's operalions through Iransactions in which
the Campany and a government agency direclly exchange cash, goods, services, or use of assels, elc. at approximately
equal value with revenue being recognised as it is eamed, Revenue for projects is recognised when eamed,

Payment made to the Company by the Land Development Agency (LDA) in relation o solar rebales for properties
construcled al Bonner during the year was assessed as reciprocal.

Non-reciprocal transfer is income which the Company receives, but does not give approximately equal value directly to
the provider in retumn. It is treated as unconditional govemment funding and is recognised in prafit or loss when the grant
becomes receivable.

The Company had one such transaction with the Community Senvices Direclorate (CSD) for capital grant funding during
the year. The Company recognised the value as revenue at the dale the ransaction occurred,

Sale of property, plant and equipment proceeds are included as revenue when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually when settlement occurs. The gain or loss on disposal of property is
calculated as the difference between the carrying amaunt of the asset at the time of the disposal and the net proceeds on
disposal.

Other income includes the refund of imputation credits which is recognised when the right to the refund arises, being
the year in which the dividends to which the imputation credits relate are recaived, As the Company is exempt from income
tax (see note 2(s)) any imputation credits received cannot be applied against current or fulure income tax liabilities and
are therefore refundable to the Company from the ATO.

Expenditure
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis reflecting the terms upon which the goods or services are purchased.

Finance incoma and finance expenses

Finance income comprises: inlerest income which is recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method; and
dividend income, which is recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right ta receive payment is established.
Finance expenses comprise: inlerest expense on borrowings; losses on disposal of available for sale financial assets; and
impairment losses recognised on financial assets (other than trade receivables) which is recognised in profit or loss using
the effeciive inferest method,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash al bank. Cash flows from operaling activities are reported on using the direct method which requires major classes
of gross cash receipts and gross payments to be disclosed.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables arise in the normal course of providing goods and services. Normal terms of settiement vary from seven
to 60 days. Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
costs using the effective interest method, less any allowance for impairment.

Allowance for impairment of the receivables is assessed based on objective evidence and a review of overdue balances,
taking into account debls more than 90 days overdue, the amount of individual debts and financial circumstances of those
debtars, and any active recovery arrangements in place,
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Cammunity Housing Canberra Limitad
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Notes to the financlal statements continued...
2, Summary of accounting policies continued...

U]

0

(k)

U]

Inventory

Inventory refates to costs of developments in progress that will be sold on completion to extemal parties. These costs
include land and construction costs and bomowing cosls assaciated with the developments, The Company capitalises
barrowing costs incurred on acquiring, constructing, or producing its inventory,

Inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cosls of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Works in progress costs for inventory projects are recognised when it is probable thal the fulure economic benafits
embodied within the project will flow to the Company. Inventory is classified as a current asset when it is expected to be
sold within one year and is differentiated between work in progress (under construction) and avallable for sale,

Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale are assels thal are available for immediate sale in their present condition, and their sale is highly
probable. These assets are measured at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. An impairment
loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down of the asset to fair value less cost 1o sell. Assets held for sale
are not depreciated.

Capital works in progress

Capital works in progress are prajects that have been designated for refention by the Company on completion. The cost
of self-conslructed assels includes the cost of malerials, direct cosls for consullants, where relevant, the cosls of
dismantling and removing items and restoring the site on which they are located, and statutory costs applicable in the
assel being fit for use. The Company capitalises borrowing costs incurred on acquiring, constructing, or producing its
capital works in progress,

Costs of capital works in progress are capitalised when it is probable that the future econamic benefits embadied within
the project will flow to the Company.

Property, plant and equipment
{ Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment, including improvements, are initially measured at cost.  After initial recognition
plant and equipment is measured at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
while land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Any property, plant and equipment donated to the Company or acquired for nominal cost is recognised at fair value at the
date the Company obtains control of the assets.

Land purchased for development (which is not intended to be sold) is carried at cost under capital works in progress unil
complefion of the capital works development,

Property, plant and equipment with a minimum value of $500 is capitalised.
(i Revaluation of land and bulldings

Following inilial recognilion at cost, land and buildings are carried at a revalued amount which is the fair value at the date
of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation on buildings and any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is measured using the market approach valuation technique. This
approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market iransactions involving identical or similar assets.
Fair values are determined by independent valuations which are obtained with suificient reqularity to ensure that the
carrying amounts do not differ materially from the assets' fair values at the reporting dale. The Company has adopted a
policy of external independent revaluation of its housing portfolio every two years,

Land and buildings are trealed as a class of assels. When the carrying amount of this class of assets is increased as a
result of a revaluation, the increase Is credited directly to the asset revaluation surplus, excepl where it reverses a
revalualion decrement previously recognised in the profit and loss. When there is a reversal of a previous revaluation
decrament through the prafit and loss, the amount is credited to profit and loss.
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Camemunity Housing Canbarra Limitad
(4 company limited by guaranize)

Notes to the financial statements continued...
2. Summary of accounting policies continued...
{1 Property, plant and equipment continued...

(m)

(i)  Determination of fair values

Fair value has bean determined using the methods disclosed in note 3. Land and buildings are measured at fair value less
accumulated depreciation on bulldings and less any impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation.

When the carrying amount of land and buildings is decreased as a resull of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised
against the available asset revaluation surpluses. Where no assel revaluation surplus exists the decrease is recognised
in profit and loss.

(iv) Depreciation

ltems of property, plant and equipment (other than land) are depreciated over their useful lives lo the Company
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assels as follows:

204 W13
Yaars Yoars
Buildings 625 62.5
Leasehold improvement i 3
Plant and Equipmani
-Camguters 3 3
-Mator vehiclas 56 56
-Office fit oul 15 15
-Equipment 5 5
~Fumiture and fiings 15 15
-Equipment held undar finance kases Life of lease Life of lease

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate,

(vi Amortisation

Amortisation is based on the cost of an intangible asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date that
they are available for use, as this most closely reflects the expecled pattemn of consumption of the fulure economic benefits
embodied in the asset, Amaortisation rates, methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reparting date and adjusted if
appropriate. The useful life of intanglble assels has been assessed for 2014 as 4 years (2013: 4 years).

(vi) Impalrment

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment, including intangible assets, are reviewed for impairment al each
reporting dale, wilh recoverable amounts being estimated when events or changes in circumstances indicale that the
carrying value may be impaired. An impairment loss shall be recognised immediately in profit and loss, unless the asset
is recorded at fair value in which case it is recognised In ofther comprehensive income and treated as a revaluation
decrease, An impairment loss was recognised for the Company’s intangible assets in 2014 (see nate 16),

(vil)  Derecognition and disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon dispasal, when the item is na longer used in the operations
of the Company or when it has no sale value. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculaled as the
diffarence between the nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel) is included in profit or loss in the year
the assel is deracognised. Any part of the asset revaluation surplus attributable to the asset disposed of or derecognised
is fransferred to retained eamings at the date of disposal,

Financial assets and liabilities
(i) Investments in available-for-sale equity instruments

Invesiments in available-for-sale equity instruments are those financial assefs thal are designated as available-for-sale
and are measured at fair value. Galns or losses on hese investments are included in other comprehensive income unil
the investment is derecognised or unbl the invesiment is detarmined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit and loss.

For investments with no active market, valuation techniques are used to assess fair value, which include consideration of
future cash flows and market conditions and other faclors that are likely to affect the instrument's fair value, including
interest rates, credit risk and volatility.

The Company has one such investment, being the 5% shareholding in Crace Developments Pty Ltd (see also note 3 (b)),
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Housing Canbesra Limited

Camnmunity
(& company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements continued...
2. Summary of accounting policies continued...
{m) Financial assets and lfahilities continued...

()

(o)

(p)

(il Loans receivable

Loans receivable are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments Ihat are not quoted in an aclive market. Such
assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent lo initial recognition
loans receivable are measured at amoriised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. The
Company had no loans receivable during the 2014 financial year.

(il Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabiliies for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the
financial year that are unpaid. Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally setfled in accordance
with the terms of the purchase. Trade payables are recegnised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amorfised costs using the effective interest method,

Employee benefits
Employee benefits comprise wages and salaries, annual and long service leave, and conirbutions to superannuation.
() Shert term benefits - wages, salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for employee entitlements to wages, salaries, superannualion and annual leave thal are expected o be seltled
whally within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at undiscounted amounts based on remuneration rates the
Company expects fo pay when the obligation is seffled,

(i)  Long term benefits

The Company's obligation in respect of long term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in relurn for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to estimate its present value,

Provisions for employee benefits payabla afler 12 months from the reporling date are based on fulure wage and salary
levels, experience of employee deparlures, and periods of service, as disclosed in note 18. The amount of these provisions
would change should any of these factors change in the next 12 months.

Long service leave: the long service leave liability is estimated with reference to the minimum period of qualifying service.
For employees with less than the required minimum period of 7 years of qualifying service, the probability that employeas
will reach the required minimum period has been taken into account in estimating the provision for lang senvice leave.
Long service leave benefits are recognised as either current or nan-current liabilities based on whether they are payable
within or after 12 months from the reporting date.

(iif} Superannuation

Employees are subject to the Superannuation Choice arrangements. The Company's default fund is AustralianSuper,
Employees who choose o join AustralianSuper or other eligible funds have a superannuation guarantee contribution paid
into their nominated funds. Contributions are recegnised in the stalement of comprehensive income when they are due.
The Company has no obligation to pay further contributions to these plans if the plans do not hold sufficient assets lo pay
all employee benefits relating to employee service in current and prior periads.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a resull of a past event, the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation that
can be esfimated reliably, and it is probable thal an cutflow of economic benefils will be required to sefile the obligation.
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected cash flows that reflects current market assessmenis of the time
value of money and the risks specific fo the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are raised in relation to construction projects where the Campany is contractually allowed to withhald pari of
the payment of construction costs, up to a pre-agreed amount, as recoursa in the event of unsatisfactory completion of
works. Upon satisfactory completion of works, payment is made and the provisions are reversed.

Leased assets

Finance Leases are leases where the Company assumes subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Upon initial
recognifion the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of iis fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease paymenis are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability s0 as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the ability. Finance charges are recognised
as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income. The fair value of the leases is estimaled as the present value
of fulure cash flows, discountad at market interest rates.
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Community Housing Canberra Limited
(A company limited by quaraniee)

Notes o the financial stalements confinued...
2. Summary of accounting policies continued...
{p) Leased assets continued...

(a)

n)

(s)

Operating Leases are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term,

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings represent financial liabilities incurred by the Company, which are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequenily measured at amoriised cost.

Impairment
i) Financial assets (including receivables)

A financial assel not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporiing date to determine whether
there is any objective avidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if abjective evidence indicates that a loss
event has occurred after the inilial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negalive effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset that can be eslimated refiably,

An impaiment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated fulure cash lows discounted at the asset's original effective interest
rate. Losses are recognised in profit o loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impalrment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss,

In assessing impairment, the Company uses historical frends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the
amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credil conditions are
such that the aclual losses ara likely to be grealer or less than suggesled by historical irends.

Individually significant financial assets are lested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assels are
assessad collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

{il  Non-financial assets

The Company, at each reporting date, assesses whether there is an indication that its non-financial assets (property, plant
and equipment) are impaired. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ils estimated
recoverable amount, The asset is then written down o its recoverable amount.

An assel's ‘value in use' is its depreciated replacement cost, where the assel would be replaced, if the Company was
deprived of it The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less cosis to sell and value in use.

For plant and equipment, an impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss. However, because land and buildings are
measured at fair value, impairment loses are recognised directly in the assel revaluation surplus, Where the impairment
loss exceeds the balance of the asset revaluation surplus for that class of assals, the difference is recognised as an
expense in the stalement of comprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent thal the assel's carmying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been delermined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. At 30 June 2014, there
were no indicalions that any of the Company's property, plant and equipment assets were impaired.

Taxation

Income Tax

Under the provisions of Section 50-5, income 1.1 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 as amended, the Company is
exempt from income tax and currently no tax provision has been provided for in the financial statemenis. Such income
lax exemption is reviewable by the ATO from time lo time and was endorsed in March 2007. The Company holds deduclible
gift recipient stalus.

Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except whare the
amount of GST incurred is nol recoverable from the ATO. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.

Recaivables and payables are recognised inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable to the
ATO s included as part of receivables or payables.

The GST companent of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities, which are recoverable from, or payable
to, the Australian Taxation Office are classified as operating cash flows.
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Notes to the financial stalements continued...

3

(a)

(b)

Determination of fair values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for financial and
nan-financial assels and liabiliies. Fair values have been determined for measurement andor disclosure purposes based
on the methads described below and reflect the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at lhe measurement date. When applicable, further information
aboul the assumplions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that assel or liability,

Non-financial assets - property, plant and equipment
The fair value of property (land and buildings) is measured using the market approach valuation technique. This approach
uses prices and ather relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or similar assets.

In accordance with Company palicy, a revaluation of the entire class of land and buildings occurs every two years, with
the last such valuaticn taking place as at 30 June 2013, However, if al any ime management considers that the carmying
amount of an asset matarially differs from its fair value, then the asset will be revalued regardless of when the last valuation
took place. Properlies completed during the 2014 financial year were valued at fair value on completion. Valuations are
conducled by an external qualified valuer. The next revaluation is due as at 30 June 2015,

The following table discloses non-financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 30 June 2014;

(a) Fair value measurement of non-financial assets !ui:
Praperty, plant and equipment

Net fair value ol

Land and buildings 145,680,811

Financial assets - investments in available-for-sale equity instruments

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus directly related transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unquoted equity investmenis whose fair value cannol be measured reliably are
carried at cost and classified as available-for-sale financial assets. Fair values for financial assets not quoled in an active
market are delermined using the income approach valuation technique, including discounting fulure cash flow and other
methods that are consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial assets,

The Company has one such investment, being its Crace Developmenis Ply Ltd shareholding. This investment does not
have a quoted market price in an active market. As such the Company has based its assassment of fair value on: general
aconomic condilions, including interest rates; risk and volatiity associated with the investment, in parficular the
performance of construction and development activities and demand for residential occupancies in the ACT; and whether
there is any significant evidence since the last reporiing date that would malterially affect the fair value of the sharehalding.
Based on a review of the faclors outlined above, including fulure cash inflows associated wilh the investment and the
financial position of Crace Developmenis Pty Lid, the Company has assessed the fair value to have decreased to
$560,855. See also note 15,

The following table discloses financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 30 June 2014;

(a) Fair value measurement of financial assets m:

Assels

Mat fair value of

Imvessirmants in aquity instnaments 560,855
Loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings which
are measured at amortised cost.

2014 013

Loans § $
Currant

- Wesipac Banking Carporation loan - 2,388 447

- Beyond Bank (feemnery Commanity CPS) boan 188512 154 576

- Crace Developments Pty Lid Loan 445,053 2,196,887

Total currant 633,565 4,740,010
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(A company Emited by guaraniee)

Notes to the financlal statements continued...
4. Loans and borrowings continued...

(@)

2014 2013
Loans 5 H
Nan-current
- ACT Gavemnment loan 68,112,000 68,112,000
- Beyond Bank (farmery Community CPS) loan 8727193 8,983,757
Total non-current 76,824,793 77095757
Tedal loans 77,458,358 B1,835,767

The ACT Government loan consists of a $50 million loan facility and a $20 million loan facility both made available at the
B0-day bank bill swap rate on the first day of each quarter, The facilifies are subject to quarterly interest only repayments
for ten years, Total interest incurred for the financial year was §1,809,428, Of this amount, $274,002 (being approximately
15% of the interest incurred) has been capitalised to inventory and capital works in progress.

The Westpac Banking Corporation loan was a $15 million short-term loan facility for the construction of the Eclipse project
al Bruce. The loan was fully repaid and extinguished during 2014 in conjunction with sales being setlled for the Eclipse
project. Tolal interest incurred for the financial year was $12,132 which was accrued against the value of the loan pending
repayments. All interest expenses were capitalised to inventory,

The Bayond Bank (formerly Community CPS) loans represent sixty-nine principal and interest morlgages relating to Land
Rent Scheme properlies, which are repayable over 25 year terms. Interest cosls for the year were $479,639.

The Crace Developments Pty Lid loan is a loan made available to shareholders of Crace Developments Pty Lid - the
Company is a 5% sharehalder. The interest cost for the year was $119,412, which was accrued against the value of the
loan pending repayments. Drawdowns of $700,000 and repayments of $2,379,947 were made during 2014 and it is
envisaged thal the loan will be repaid in the 2015 financial year,

Financing facilities available

Al reporting date, the following financing facilities had been negoliated and were available:
04 2013

$ $

Tolal facilities:

- ACT Government faciky (4.02.08) 50,000,000 50,000,000

- ACT Gavemment facifly {26.06.11) 20,000,000 20,000,000
- ACT Govemment facilty iotal 70,000,000 70,000,000

- Wastpac Banking Corporation {E’cl_pu consirchion) . 15,000,000

- Wstpac Banking Corporatian (Eclipse canstruction GST) . RI5,000
- Westpac Banking Corparation total 5 15,835,000
= Bayand Bank (formesly Community CPS) 12,635,943 12,687,224
- Crace Developments Pty Lid 2,287 500 2,787 500
Tatal facilifies 84,923 443 100,809,724
Facilities used at reporting date:

- ACT Govermmant ioans (4.02.08) 50,000,000 50,000,000

- ACT Governmant loans (20,06 11) 18,112,000 18,112,000
- ACT Govemment lnans ol 68,112,000 68,112,000

- Wstipac Banking Corparafion (Eclpse eonsiruction) - 2,386,447

- Wasipac Banking Corparafion (Eclipse consfruction GST) -
- Westpac Banking Corparation lotal - 2,388,447
- Beyond Bank (formarly Community CPS) 8,501,305 8,138,333
- Crace Developments Pty Lid 445,053 2,196,887
Total facilities used 77,458,358 81,835,767
Facilities unused at reporting dato:

- ACT Govemment facilly (4.02.08) . -

- ACT Govamment facilly {28.06.11) 1,888,000 1,868,000
= ACT Govemiment facility lodal 1,868,000 1,888,000

- Wislpac Banking Corporation (Eciipse construclion) . 12,611,553

- Wshpac Banking Cofporation {Ecfipse constuction GST) . 035,000
- Wesipac Banking Corporation total = 13,446,553
- Beyand Bank (formerdy Gommimily CPS) 3,734,638 3,548,891
- Crace Developments Py Lid 1,842 447 90,543
Total facilities unused 7,465,085 18,973,957

ACT Government Loans - 4 February 2008 and 28 June 2011

The terms and conditions of the ACT Governmenl loans are set out in the Loan Agreements dated 4 February 2008 and
28 June 2011 respectively, between the parties, Australian Capital Teritory and Community Housing Canberra Limited.
The loan facilities are to be used anly for one ar more of the permitted purposes as specified in the loan agreements and
are secured by mortgages fo the ACT Government over $75 million worth of property assets.
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Community Housing Canberra Limited
{A company limited by guarantes)

Nofes fo the financial statements continued...
4. Loans and borrowings continued..,
(a) Financing facilities available continued...

(b)

Westpac Banking Corporation

The facility was entered into for a short-term fixed period ending May 2014 to partially fund the construction of the Eclipse
project at Bruce, and was made available based on the Company reaching agreed pre-sales and equity coniribution targets
for the project. The loan was fully repaid in the first quarter of the 2014 financial year. The loan was secured by the
Company's interest in the land, construction and intellectual property which forms part of the developmant.

Beyond Bank (formerly Community CPS)
Sixty-nine of the Company's Land Rent Scheme properties are partially funded via commercial facilities with Beyond Bank
{formerly Community CPS). These are principal and interest morlgages, repayable over a 25-year term,

Crace Developments Pty Ltd

The loan facility is to the value of $2.288 million (excluding accrued interest). The facilily was made available to allow
shareholders to use excess cash reserves held by Crace Developments Ply Ltd, prior to dividends being declared and is
due lo expire on 31 Oclober 2014,

Banker's undertakings

The Company has obtained the following banker's undertakings, which remain outstanding at 30 June 2014;
1 25 June 2008, 56,000 to the Environment and Planning Directorale (EPD) — for verge works at the Forde
development;
2 9December 2008, $19,000 to EPD — for verge works at The Edge development; and
3 30June 2011, $6,000 to EPD - for infrastructure works at the Eclipse development.

Itis expected thal these undertakings will lapse with recourse as development works are completed.

ltems held as security

Westpac Banking Corporation continues to hold 20 properfies as security located at City Edge and Village Vue. This
arrangement is reviewed annually.

Income
2014 013
$ $
(a) Rental revenue
Public rebated rental income i 1,004,777 1,078,239
Affordable housing rental income i 674,784 615,418
NRAS housing rental income il 3119437 3,035,543
NRAS Land rent housing rental income v 2,106,435 1,380,430
Oither rental incoms 46,215 52463
6,951,648 6,162,793
{b) Development sales revenue
Geass sales proceeds — Eclipse project v 30,183,242 30,391,252
Gross sales proceeds - Temaces project 4,357,199 -
34,540,441 30,301,282
{c) Grant funding
Community Services Direcloeate contribution wi 126,687 2.314.313
Land Development Agency — Housing Atfordability Fund il - 376,666
Land Develapment Agency — Boaner solar saver rebale 13,636 175,000
140,324 2,863,978
{d) Management fees
NRAE non enlity joind venlure management fees Vil 80,210 49,118
80,210 49,119
(e) Otherrevenue
Rafund of Impulation cradits fram the Australian Taxation Offica fx 458,144 ~
Mambership 200 280
455,434 280
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5. Income continued...

Other Income notes

| Pubdic rebated rental ineoma is based on tenancy agreements that assess 25% of househetd incame plus Commarwenadh Rental Assistance.

i Affoedable housing rental iIncome Is based on lenancy sgreements that charge 74.9% of market rend. Markel rent on the Comparny’s hausing portiolio
Is assessed annually by an independent certified valuar,

il NRAS housing rental income ks based on lenancy agreaments that charge 74.9% of market rent and for which an annual subsidy is provided by the
Department of Social Services (DSS) Marked rent on the Company's housing portfolo s assessed annually by an independent cartified valuer. Tha
subsidy is indexed annually by the rental companent of the CPI,

v MRAS land rent housing rental income denates revenua derived by using the Land Rent Scheme, The Scheme s an ACT Govermmeand inlliative lo

Iincreasa access 1o alfosdable home ownarship and was a recommendation of the Govemment's Affardable Housing Action Plan, Tha Company receives
NRAS incenthves far these preperies and as such, discloses rental income separalaly. The increass in revenua raflects the significant add®ion of new

properies in the current and previous financial year (full year effect) o the land renl housing portiolia,

v Gross sales proceeds reflects sales of the Ecipse development in Bruce and The Temaces development in Hamson (hroughout the year, Cost ol
developments soki reprasents the folal cost, net of selling expensas, of the Eclipse and The Temaces projects refated io the disclosed sales revenues
(see note 6 (a)).

i Community Services Directorate (CSD) capital grant relales fo a contiibution provided 1o the Company o assist wilh Rs gim of providing affordable
housing outcomes in the ACT, by way of a capital grant,

Wi Land Development Agency - Housing Alordability Find (HAF) revenue relates to project works at Harrison,

will NRAS nan-enlity joint venture (NEJV) management fees relae to fees charged by the Company Lo administer NRAS NEIV incentives allocatad to

properies nat cwned by e Campany.
[x The Campany recehved a refund of imputation credits from the Austrakan Taxation Office (ATO) in relation 1o the Crace Developments Ply Lid dividand
(sea noles 2(d) and 8{a)).
6 Expenses
2014 2013
$ $
(a) Cost of developments sold
Edlipse project i 25,284,004 32,596,372
Teraces project i 3,303,705 -
28,567,709 32,596 372
(b)  Development expenses
Community Services Direclorate Gungadesra Mation Building Stimulus i . 852 427
Other developmant axpenses 384,278 99,7094
384,279 052,221
{c)  Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciafion g 1,345,819 1,081,023
Amoutisation 16 63,520 2807
1,408,340 1,109,840
{d)  Loss on disposal, transfer or impalrment of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Loss on disposalidemolion of property, plant and equipment 26,805 217,164
Loss on impairment of intanglble assets i 104,541 -
136,645 247,164

Other expenses noles

| Ralates to costs incurmad in the construction of the Eclipse and The Temmaces projects which ware both completed in 2014,

ii Relates to a payment made to CSO in refation ko funding provided for the Gungaderra National Building SSmulus project underiaken by the Company.
fil Rlates to (he impairment loss assessed for the BASIX Intagrated Business Systam {sea nate 16).

7 Employee expenses

M4 M3

] $

Salaries and wages 1443120 1,284 189
Superannuation contribulions 132 996 115,640
Pravizion for annual and long service leave 41402 58427
Diher employes expenses 29,563 20493

_ 1s47088 1,487,748
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(a)

(b)

Finance income and finance expenses

2014 Fuikl
(a) Finance income $ 5
Interest eamed on cash and cash equivalanis GOB8,091 305,900
Dividends received i 1,071,336
1,679,427 305,300
(b) Finance expenses
Intarast expense on ACT Government loan 1535426 1,776,990
Inlerest expense on other interesl bearing debt 601,056 4TB 747
2135482 2,255,738

i The Company has & shareholding in Crace Developmants Pty Lid (sea note 15), which declared two dividends during the 2014 financial year, The
dividends were hlly franked and the imputation credits are refundable to Be Company (see note 5{e).

Property, plant and equipment
Adjustment to fair value

During the 2014 financial year, the Company built 20 land rent properties in the suburbs of Bonner and Jacka and one
group home in the suburb of Lyons. The Company retained 8 residential and 6 commercial properties constructed as par
of the Eclipse development and purchased 6 residential units in the Sorrel development at Lyons, These properfies were
revalued on the date at which Cerificate of Occupancy was issued. The Company engages four valuation companies
when fair value assessments are required, being CB Richard Ellis (V) Pty Limited, Colliers International Consullancy and
Valuation Pty Limiled, Jones Lange LaSalle Incorporated and MM.J Real Estate.

In accordance with Company policy, independent accredited valuers are engaged to determine the fair value of the
Company's land and buildings every two years. Fair value is measured using the market approach valuation technique.
This approach uses prices and olther relevant information generated by markel ransactions involving identical or similar
assels, The effective date of the current revaluation is 30 June 2013, The valuations were conducted by CB Richard Ellis
(V) Pty Limited. The fair value of all Company owned property following the revaluations is disclosed below as part of this
note.

Carrying amount Tﬂl‘!.!s.
2013

Cost or fair vale 133,733,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation {1,857 428)
Add: Wiite back of depreciation 1,756,672
Add: Land and buildings revaluations at 30 June 2013 1,135,000
Carrying amount al 30 June 2013 134 667,253
2014

Cast or fair value 147,954,614
Less: Accumulated depreciation {1,444,178)
Camylng amount at 30 June 2014 146,510,438

Property, plant and equipment carrying amount
The carrying amount of the land and building assel class consists of four types of housing stock as follows:

2014 2013

H $

Transfemed land and buding 51,084,720 52,280,000
Non-transferred land and bullding 16,790,382 14,155,000
NRAS land and bullding 55,240,852 50,660,000
Land Rent building 21,664,947 17,405,000
Tatal land and building 145,680,911 134,500,000
Plant and equipment 828,527 167,253
146,510,438 134,667,253
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9. Property, plant and equipment confinued...

(c) Property, Plant and Equipment reconciliation to carrying amount

Land and Bulldings Plant and Equipment |  Tolal Property Plant and
Reconcillation to carmying amount St vake i Equipment
2014
Carrylng amount at 1 July 2013 134,500,000 167,253 134,667,253
Additions - Assel purchases 2,541,297 800,843 3,442,240
Additions — Transfers from capilal warks in progressfimentory 8,592 555 - B.502 555
Disposats - Sale . (151,338) {151,338)
Valuation adjustments to fair valee 1,303,148 - 1,303,149
Wiite back of accumulated daprecialion - 102 398 102,394
Dapreciation for tha year (1,256, 0:89) (89,730} {1,345,819)
Balance at 30 June 2014 145,660,511 829,527 146,510,438
10  Cash and cash equivalents
2014 2013
$ i
Patty cash 300 300
Cash at bank 24,603,460 13,117,076
24 503,760 13,117,376
11 Trade and other receivables
(@) Cu ¢ 2‘.01: !II-'L;
Trade deblors i 147,059 188,914
Less: Allowarice for impaimment (0, 289) (44,817)
97 760 144,297
Loan drawdown from Crace Developments Ply Lid . 137,500
Imputation eredits refundabile from the Australian Taxation Offica iii 450,144
Olher debtors 1,964 -
558,668 281,798

| Trade dablors is comprised of rental receivables of $197,059 of which $00,544 is considered ovandua (30 days +).
I Reprasants a drawdown against he Crace Developments Pty Lid loan facty on 30 June 2043 which was received on 1 July 2013,
Iii Felates to imputation credits associaled with dividends received from Crace Developments Pty Lid during 2014 (sea notes 5 and 8).

(b) Recanciliation of the carrying amounts for the allowance of

Impalrment

Carrying amaunt at the beginning of year
Raduction in allewance arising fram manles recovered

Reduction [n allowance arising from write-off of unecoverabile debt

Additional allowance recognised
Carrying amaunt at the end of the year

2014 2013

$ $
(44,617) (11,045)
7,804 -
24925 11,045
(87.408) (44517)
(89,209) (44617)
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12 Inventory
14 2013
Currant $ $
Avallable for sale
Developments = construclion cosls 1878124 20273710
Devalopmants — fand 1,234 566 2,587 385
Under constructon
Developmants — construction costs - 6,900,101
Devalopmants - land . 2,348,744
9,112,500 32,108,940
Man-current
Linder construstion E
Developments - construction costs 2.328,290 2077 6490
Develapmants - land 2,532 765 2,532 766
4,861,056 4,710,456
As at 30 June 2014, the Campany has one active construction project, located in Hamtsen, identified for sale upon complation, The curren] compaonent
of Imvanlory relates to the completed portion of the Harmison project (known as The Teraces) and the Eclipse project that was complefed during 2014,
The non-cument compenent relates to construction and land costs that will form part of the later siages of work al Hamison.
13  Other assets
2014 M3
Currant § s
Accrued Income i 1969419 1,003,762
Bondsideposits paid 10,000 2500
Commanity Housing property bonds held 1,169 (698)
Frepaymans 166,460 108, 466
2,147,038 1,115,029
| Inchudes 1,860,474 relaling fo NRAS Incentives which are acquitted annually 1o the Depatment of Social Services on a May to April basis,
14  Capital works in progress
2014 2013
{a)  Capltal work In progress H $
Davelopmanis = land and construcion costs - 484 686
. 404,686
i As a1 30 June 2014 the Company has no capital works in progress projects designated fo be retained upon completion.
b} Reconcillation of capiial work in progress developmants carrying amounts
2014 2013
$ $
Carrying amaunt at the baginning of year 404,686 1,805,669
Additions 4,746,253 6,460,642
Transfers to property, plant and equipment {5,240,939) {7 B78,648)
Carrying amount at the end of the year . 484 586
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15  Investments in available-for-sale equity instruments
2014 2013

$ H
Shares — Crace Developments Ply Lid al fair value 560,855 2,195,262
560,855 2,196,262

Valuation of avallable-for-sale equity instrumenis

The investment Is in Crace Developments Ply Lid (Grace), a special purpose vehicke sel up to manage the Crace Urban development. Capital repayments
of $1,500,010 were received against the Immstment during the year, The Company used he audited financial statements of Crace al 30 Juna 2014 as
well as other fectors iikely fo affect the value of the investment 1o determing whelher any significant movements in the fai value of the invesiment had
occured. Based on a review of factors, including fulure cash Inflows associated with the investment, the fair value was assessed o have decraased Lo
§560,855 (see also note 3 (b))

16  Intangible assets

Intangible assels 11!-1-: 10‘1:
Alenst 254,083 254,083
Less: Accurmulated amonisation {125077) [61,556)
Less: Impaiment {109.841) =
Carrying amount at tha and of the year 19,165 192,527
Reconcilaon of the camying amounts for each intangible asset are et out below: W‘; m:
Carrying amount at the beginning of year 182,527 83,030
Additions - 136,414
Amortisation [ {63,520) (28,917)
[mpairment lasses recognised in statement of comprehensive income i (109 841) -
Carrying amount at the end of the year 18,165 182,527

| The BASIX Integrated Business Syslam was assessed for impairment at 30 June 2014 in accordance with the Campary’s accounting policy. On the
biasis of managemant's decision o discontinue the use of specific modules within the systam the assat was assessed as impaired (see nole B{d]).

17 Trade and other payables
2014 a3

$ §

Trade credilors 343,384 5672
Accnied axpenses | 389,046 1,838,280
GST payable (o the Australian Taxation Office I 405,547 400,471
Pay a5 you go withholding (PAYG) payable lo the Australian Taxation Offica 002 23532
Employee supesannualion and salary packaging lability 10,966 (1,706}
1,177,030 2,466,248

I Includes an amount of $43,377 payahle to the ACT Auditor-General's Office (AGO) for awdiing the financial siatements (3013; $42,114). The AGO
provided no other services to, and received na other benefits from, the Company duing tha reparting period.

il The liability to the Australian Taxabon Office for GST payable primarily relates to sales of the Eclipse and The Temraces developments (2013: Eclipse).

18  Employee benefits

P 1 1
Annual leave 95,010 75421
Long senvice leave 59,003 -
Total cument employes benefits 154,013 75421
MNon-curmant

Long servica leave 7437 44,527
Total non-cument employee benafits 7,337 44,527
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19  Other provisions
Provision for settlemant of construction contracls

Balance at the beginning of the year
Prowtslons made durng the year
Payments made during the yaar

Provisicn unused and reversed during the year
Batance al the end of ihe year

2014 2013

$ $
2,267,250 1,885,553
319,028 813,510
(1,472 868) (431,813)
1,113,389 2,267,250

Pravisions made and used during the year ralate io funds retained by CHC against individual constraction invoices, calculated as a percentage of total
contract price on construclion projects, which are held as recourse in the event of unsatisfactory comgletion of works. These fmds are paid to the
construction pravider upon reaching specified milastones following compledion of the praject, During the year funds were relained against The Terraces

consiruction project and partindy repaid for the Ecipse and The Teraces projacts (see nola 2(o}).

20  Other liabilities
Revenue recabved n advance

Income recebved In advance
Other

21 Equity
Asset revaluation surplus

Balance at the beginning of the year
DisposaTransfors
- Land and Buidings
Tokal Dispasals/Transfers
Ravalaion incraments an vakmlion adjistmants of
- Transfeved land and buildings
= Man-transferred land and bulidings
- NRAS land and buiklings
- Land Rent buildings
Total revalation increments on valuation adjustments

Balance at the end of the year

The asset revaluaton surplus s used 10: record Incraases in the fair valua of land and buildings and decreases to tha exlent thal such decreases

offset an increase in the value of thal class of assels previously recognised in the asset revaluation surplus,

Available-for-sale financial asset surplus

Balance al the beginning of the year
- Available for sale nancial assels revaluations
Total revaluation incremeant

Balance at the end of the year

2014 2013

$ $

157 624 158,037
2,901 2043
160,525 160,580
2014 2043

] H
55,680,666 52,309,860
a (564613)

- (594513)

- 1,136,568
465,614 92,600
524,098 1,850,383
313,43 086,774
1,300,148 4 075,418
57,183,814 55,880,666
2014 2013

$ $
686,330 .
{135,388) 685,330
{135,308) 665,330
550,832 £85,330

The avadable-for-sala inancial assets suplus is used to record increases and decraases in fair value of available for sale financial assets unbil such
time as the investment is derecognised o until the investment ks determined to be impaired, &t which lime the cumulative gain or loss praviously

recognised in the revaluation surplus ks reclassified to profil and boss,
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22

23

Commitments and contingencies
(a)  Operating leases

The Company has entered into 101 commercial leases for land. One additional lease for office space, which had an
average life of three years with no renewal opfions included in the contract, expired on 31 December 2013; the exisling
101 leases are under the ACT Govemment's Land Rent Scheme. Land Rent Scheme leases are not included below.

Future minimum renals payable under these leases as at he reparting date ane: 014 3
$ $

Wikhin ona year - 55,760

AMer one year

Total commitments under operating leases . 55760

(b)  Capital expenditure commitments

At reporting date the Company has no capital expenditure commitments (2013: §4,567,491), The Company has exchanged
contracts an 15 blocks of land at Lawson under the ACT Gavernment's Land Rent Scheme, however works ara not
anticipaled to commence until 2017,

(¢}  Contingent liabilities

Crace Developments Ply Ltd

The Company has provided a guarantee to the lenders of Crace Developments Ply Lid up to a maximum of $208,000
(2013: $206,000) if Crace Developments Pty Ltd fails to meet certain lending criteria sfipulated in its construction loan
agraements. The Company considers the possibility of being required 1o make any payments under the guarantee to be
remate as at 30 June 2014,

Related parties and related party transactions
(a)  Key management personnel

The following were key management personnel of the Company at any fime during the reporting period and unless
otherwise stated were key management parsonnel for the entire period:

Hon-axeculive directors Executive

Mr Colin Alexander (Chair) M Craly Brennan {Chial Execulve Officer)

W Paul Green( Deputy Chair—appointed 26 Nov13)  Ms Kim Sinclair (Deputy Chief Execufive Officer)
I Cathi Moore [Deputy Chair — ceased 26 Now 13)  Mr Rohan Haslam (Chief Financial Officer)

Wr Richard Bear

I Ken Harsham

s Tania Parkes (resigned 24 Sep 13)

M Rabecca Vassarolll (appointed 26 Nav 13)

M Kim Wemar

(b}  Transactions with key management personnel

Directors of the Company received or accrued the following remuneration in conjunclion with acting in their capacity as a
Director of the Company:

Diractor Director Related Enlity 201: m:
M Colin Alexander Crace Developments Pty Ltd 10,925 40,000
W Paul Green Pralessional Engagemant Group Pty Lid 5,000 5,000
Ms Calhi Moora 5,000 5,000
M Richard Bear 5,000 5,000
I Ken Horsham Solutions Alliance Pty Lid 5,000 5,000
Ms Tania Parkes . 5,000
s Rebacca Vassaralt 5,000 -
s Kim Womer 8463 5,000

41,388 40,000

in addition to salaries, the Company also provides salary sacrificed options to execulives and conlributes amounts to
nominated superannuation funds.
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23 Related parties and related party transactions continued...

{c) Keymanagement personnel compensation

2014 2013

§ $

Shart-term employment benedits 41,656 835,859

Qither lang-temm benafits (superannuation) 54 616 69,178
| 506,282 905,037

1 The reduction in key managemant personnal compensation reflects the discontinuation of the role of Chief Operating Officer in 2014,

(d)  Other key management personnel transactions with the Company

Professional Engagement Group Pty Lid was engaged to provide legal advice in relation to construction contracts — the
engagement was based on normal market rates and amounted to $2 520,

Investment In Crace Developments Pty Ltd

The Company is represenied on the board of directors of Crace Developments Ply Lid by Mr Richard Bear, Mr Colin
Alexander is the Chief Executive Officer of CIC Australia, an investor in Crace Developments Ply Ltd. To ensure there is
no conflict of interest arising from this directorship, Mr Colin Alexander is excluded from the Company's decision making
process in relation lo the investment in Crace Developmenis Py Lid and any associated decisions in relation to the
purchase of properties from the Crace development.

24  Additional company information
Company limited by guarantee

The Company does not have share capital and in the event of winding up, the liability of members is limited to $100. If
upan winding-up or dissolution of the Company there remains, after safisfaction of all its debts and liabilities, any property
whatsoever, the same shall nol be paid to nor distribuled among the members of the Company, but shall be given or
transferred to some other institulion or Company having objects similar to the objects of the Company and whose
Memorandum of Association or constitution shall prohibit the distribution of its or their income and property among its or
their members to an extent at least as great as is imposed on the Company. Such institufion or institulions are to be
determined by the members of the Company at or bafore the time of the dissolution and in default thereof by application
to the Supreme Court for determination.

As at 30 June 2014 the number of members was 16 (2013: 15).

H|Page



Community Housing Canberra Limited
{4 company fimited by quaranies)

Directors’ declaration
In the opinion of the Directors of Community Housing Canberra Limited:

(a) the fnancial statemenls of the Company as sel out on pages 8 to 31 are in accordance with the
Carporafions Act 2001, including:

e giving a trug and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance, as
represented by the results of its operations and cash flows, for the year ended on that date; and

= complying wilh Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Corporations Regulations
2001, and

(b)  there are reasonable grounds to befieve that the Company will be able lo pay its debls as and when they become
due and payable.

Signed in ance with a resclution of Directors:

Directar Director '\J)

Canberra &1 October 2014

32|Page






Community Housing Canberra Ltd
PO Box 6239, O’Connor ACT 2602
Unit 224 / 29 Braybrooke Street,
BRUCE ACT 2617

Phone: 02 6248 7716
www.chcaffordablehousing.com.au

ACN 081 354 752

GREY 35841



